ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 15, 2008
11: 07 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 37

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
to correct obsolete references to the office of secretary of
state by substituting references to the office of |ieutenant
governor and to elimnate personal pronoun references in the
sections proposed to be anended.

- MOVED HIR 37 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 374

"An Act requiring publication of notice by state agencies when
they transfer positions in the classified, partially exenpt, or
exenpt service fromone area of the state to another.™

- HEARD AND HELD
SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 261
"An Act establishing a program of public funding for the
financing of election canpaigns of candidates for state elected
offices, to be known as the Cl ean El ections Act."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 37
SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM SEC. OF STATE REFERENCES

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 15, 2008



SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GRUENBERG

02/ 19/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 13/ 08 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 13/ 08 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 15/ 08 (H) STA AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 374
SHORT TITLE: REQU RE NOTI CE OF RELOCATI ON OF STATE JOB
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) DOLL

02/ 19/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) STA, FIN
03/ 15/ 08 (H) STA AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 261
SHORT TITLE: PUBLI CALLY FI NANCED ELECTI ONS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

05/ 15/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
05/ 15/ 07 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

01/ 25/ 08 (H SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 25/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 08 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 21/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 21/ 08 (H Heard & Held

02/ 21/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 06/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 06/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 15/ 08 (H STA AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SUSAN HARG S, Staff

Representati ve Andrea Dol |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 374 on behal f of
Representative Doll, prine sponsor.

JACK KREI NHEDER, Chi ef Anal yst
Ofice of the Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget
Ofice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 15, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
374.

NI CKI NEAL, Director

Di vi si on of Personnel & Labor Rel ations

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
374.

SUZANNE HANCOCK, St aff

Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 261 on
behal f of Representative LeDoux, prime sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as co-sponsor of HB 261.

ERI C EHST, Director

Clean Elections Institute

Phoeni x, Arizona

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
heari ng on HB 261 on behal f of the Cl ean Elections Institute.

TIM JUNE, Chair

Al askans for Cl ean El ections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 261.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

VICE CHAIR BOB ROSES called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 11:07:22 AM Represent ati ves
Coghi I I, Johnson, Guenberg, Doll, and Roses were present at the
call to order.

HIR 37- CONST AM SEC. OF STATE REFERENCES

[ Contai ns nmention of HIR 7.]

11: 08: 23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 15, 2008



VI CE CHAIR ROSES announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTION NO 37, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska to correct obsolete
references to the office of secretary of state by substituting
references to the office of |ieutenant governor and to elimnate
personal pronoun references in the sections proposed to be
anended.

11: 08: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG presented HIJR 37 as prine sponsor. He
stated his hope that the resolution would be noncontroversial.
He said it is simlar to HIR 7, which was sponsored by
Representative Anderson in 2007. As noted in the sponsor
statenent and in a nmenorandum from Jack Chenoweth of Legislative
Legal and Research Services, dated 2/18/08, included in the
commttee packet, voters approved a series of anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska in 1970, technically
changing the nane, "Ofice of Secretary of State," to "Ofice of
t he Lieutenant Governor." However, through an oversight, the
drafting attorneys mssed two of the references to secretary of
state, located in Article 2, Section 5, and Article 3, Section
25. The proposed resolution would correct that technical
over si ght. Furthernore, the resolution would change nasculine
pronouns to gender neutral.

11:10: 53 AM

VI CE CHAIR cl osed public testinony.

11:11: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HIR 37 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 37 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 374- REQUI RE NOTI CE OF RELOCATI ON OF STATE JOB

11:11: 33 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 374, "An Act requiring publication of notice by
state agencies when they transfer positions in the classified,
partially exenpt, or exenpt service from one area of the state
to anot her."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 15, 2008



11:12: 01 AM

SUSAN HARG S, Staff, Representative Andrea Doll, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 374 on behalf of Representative Doll
prime sponsor. She said the bill would require 30-day
notification for any state job that is noved to another |ocation
in Al aska. The intent of the bill is to increase governnent
transparency. M. Hargis said there are a lot of valid reasons
for nmoving positions around the state, but it is helpful for the
public, legislators, and other agencies to know where those
positions are going to be | ocated.

11:14: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 374, Version 25-LS1322\E, Wayne, 3/14/08,
as a work draft.

11:15: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for di scussion purposes.

11:15:19 AM

M5. HARG S noted that the only change nmade in Version E was the
deletion of the Alaska Railroad from the |anguage, because the
Alaska Railroad is a public corporation and its enployees are
not defined as state enployees. Furthernore, the corporation
does not wutilize the classified, partially exenpt, or exenpt
cat egori es.

11:16: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection, therefore
Version E was before the commttee as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Hargis what the sponsor's
position would be if after exenpting one corporation, others
wanted to be exenpted as well.

M5. HARA S responded that no other agencies have mnade the
request .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recomrended that the bill sponsor check
with the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, "so that they don't
derail the bill at the very last mnute." He asked for the
definition of "transfer", indicating his concern that people

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 15, 2008



mght try to avoid the proposed bill's requirement by calling a
nove a tenporary assignnment rather than a transfer. He cited
the definition from Black's Law Dictionary, which read as
foll ows:

transfer, vb. 1. To convey or renove from one place or
one person to another; to pass or hand over from one
to another, esp. to change over the possession or
control of.

11:19: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL conceded that Representative G uenberg had
an excellent point, and she suggested the bill could be anended
to add that definition of "transfer™. She expl ai ned the reason

for using the word "transfer"” is to clarify that a new job is
not bei ng created.

11:19: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is not going "to suggest any
definition because it's sonething that's going to require sone
thought.” He said he thinks the bill sponsor needs to |ook at
ways that, in the worst-case scenario, "people could try to get
around this,” and tighten the l|anguage to prevent that from
happeni ng.

11:19: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he has a simlar concern with the
| anguage, "area of state". He asked if the 30-day notice
requirenent would apply to an office noving from Juneau to
Douglas or a legislator noving back to his constituency. He
said he thinks there are potential "hang-ups" related to the
bill because of the |oose definition of "area", and he said he
woul d hate the bill to be interpreted so that a |egislator would
have to give a 30-day notice just to nove from one office to
anot her within the capitol.

11: 21: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL noted that reference to Juneau neans the
City & Borough of Juneau; therefore, Douglas would be included.
She indicated her wllingness to tighten the |anguage of the
bill.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 15, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON reiterated that "area" is broad |anguage
that needs to be defined nore narrowy.

11: 22: 02 AM

M5. HARG S, in response to a question from Vice Chair Roses,
said the Division of Personnel tracks the location of positions
currently.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Representative Doll's
remark about the Gty & Borough of Juneau, suggested guidelines
based on city and borough, but noted that nuch of the state is
i n unorgani zed boroughs.

11: 24: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL offered his understanding that there is
currently an online notification system that announces positions
open for hire, and those already in state enploynment are given
pr ef er ence.

M5. HARG S responded that the Division of Personnel has a system
to denote where a position is open at any given tine. For
exanple, when a position is transferred, it would be listed on
the system She pointed out that sonetines the current holder
of a position is transferred with the position, while other
times the position is transferred in open status. The bill
woul d enconpass both scenarios, she said. She said it is in the
public's best interest to assist in figuring out where certain
positions and enpl oyees in them can be contact ed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he is trying to figure out "how it

mght work as a system” He stated, "It just seens to ne,
| ooking at the fiscal note, that this is going to require nore.
And so, |I'm kind of heading towards the direction of if there's
already a systemin place - if sonebody already put those out -

that it can justify that."

M5. HARG S said the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor has a 30-
day public notice system "and they said it would not be a
problem and it would not be an extra cost, because they're
sinply posting onto that sanme system™

11: 27: 23 AM

JACK KREI NHEDER, Chief Analyst, Ofice of the Director, Ofice
of Managenent & Budget, shared that he has lived in Juneau for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 15, 2008



30 years and recogni zes Representative Doll's concern regarding
the transfer of position out of Juneau. However, he stated that
the adm ni stration does not support the bill because it views it
as mcro-managi ng the executive branch and state agenci es. He
said the Ofice of the Governor believes that departnents need
"the flexibility to replace staff where agency functions and
services require those positions” - factors he said wll
natural ly change over tine. He noted that historically there
have been positions not only transferred out of Juneau, but out
of Anchorage and Fairbanks to Juneau as well. He said even
though the bill proposes notification, wthout placing any
restriction on the transfers, the Ofice of the Governor views
the proposal as a "slippery slope"” and is not confortable "going
down that road of having to provide that kind of notification."

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL  asked M . Kr ei nheder i f he would
characterize the objection of the Ofice of the Governor to HB
374 as resulting from "thinking that there's an intrusion here
fromthe legislature.”

MR. KREI NHEDER replied that that's one concern. He noted that
Senator Elton had requested that the Ofice of the Governor
review and essentially provide approval for transfers. He said
the Ofice of the Governor did not support that request. He
said the governor does not want to mcro-manage even her own
departnments; she wants to hire good admnistrators and allow
themto do their work.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 11:31:22 AMto 11: 33:45 AM

11: 33: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG stated that the Fiscally Responsible
Al askans Needi ng Know edge (FRANK) Initiative [of 1994] had w de
public support, and the governor has taken a position in favor

of open and transparent governnment. He said the bill sponsor is
trying to "expand that concept into an area that people have
sone interest in." He asked M. Kreinheder, "Wiy in the world

woul d the governor take a position against the position she's
al ready taken, against the public's right to know?" He added,
"We're going to find ourselves going down the road they are in
Washi ngton, D.C., where Congress is trying to open governnent,
and the executive branch has in the past, under several
adm nistrations - both parties - tried to close it." He said
that is not popular with the people, is not good public policy,
and is "going in the wong direction.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 15, 2008



MR. KREI NHEDER responded that the administration is happy to
provide information requested by the legislature and nenbers of
the public regarding transfer positions, and has done so in the
past through the Departnent of Admnistration. He clarified
that the problem the governor has with the bill is related to
the i ssue of advance notification of positions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the concern is in regard to
the 30-day requirenent. He said he does not know what the bil
sponsor thinks on the matter, but he said [the 30-day
requirenent] is a detail that ought to be able to be resolved
"so we can get on with the process and the policy of the
adm ni stration.”

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said, "No."

11: 36: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated his understanding that the state
is never in the practice of noving jobs and not announcing that
information in the database.

11: 36: 14 AM

MR KRElI NHEDER answered that the infornmation is avail abl e. He
deferred to Ms. Neal for further comment.

11: 36: 52 AM

NI CKI NEAL, Director, D vision of Personnel & Labor Relations,
responded to questions previously posed by the commttee. She
confirmed that the location of positions is tracked by the
division and that information is processed in its system either
prior to or concurrent with the transfer position.

11: 37: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked what practical problens a 30-day
requi renment may cause.

M5. NEAL explained that there are tines when positions are
transferred while wvacant, and recruiting takes place in one
| ocation and may be a difficult and | engthy process. She said,

"Then they may decide ... it's feasible to have this work done
from another |ocation, so that would essentially delay the
filling and acconplishnment of work, if once that decision was

made, a 30-day notice period was required.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 15, 2008



11:38: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she thinks two different issues are
bei ng di scussed. The first scenario Ms. Neal just described,
but the second pertains to jobs where it is known well ahead of
time that the position is going to be noved fromone |ocation to
anot her. She asked Ms. Neal if she agrees.

M5. NEAL said that's correct. Wen a position is filled, there
is a period of tinme in which notices are provided to an enpl oyee
and the union prior to the position being filled, whereas when
the position is vacant, the enployee is [offered the job] and
noved rat her quickly.

11: 39: 23 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES asked Ms. Neal if passage of the proposed bil
woul d conflict with any current negotiated agreenents, in terns
of the handling of transfers.

M5. NEAL replied that to best of her know edge, the answer to
t hat question is no.

11: 39: 46 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL revi ened t hat t he bi |l lists
"classified", "partially exenpt", and "exenpt" service. He

asked, "Who would this not cover with regard to transfer of a
posi tion?"

M5. NEAL answered, "I'm not aware of anyone that it would not
cover in the executive branch.”

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked what "the body of possible
novenents" would be and how many of [these positions] have been
noved within the |last two years.

11:41: 01 AM

M5. NEAL said conbining classified, partially exenpt, and exenpt
categories, there are approximately 15,6000 positions. She said
she does not have a count of the nunber of positions transferred

on hand. Ms. Neal referred to a docunent prepared by Senator
Elton based on nunbers the D vision of Personnel provided,
[entitled, "The erosion of state jobs in Juneau,” included in

the commttee packet], in which Senator Elton indicates that 136

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 15, 2008



positions were transferred out of Juneau in the |ast 18 nonths.
However, Ms. Neal said there were several positions transferred

into Juneau. She said, | don't have that nunber right, nor do I
have the nunber avail able right now of positions that were noved
bet ween other |ocations throughout the state.” She offered to

gather that information for the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested perhaps the question to ask is
how many people nove to Anchorage from other parts of the state
each year?

11:42:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON of fered his understanding that "this

is not limted just to the executive branch; this is al
agenci es. " He questioned whether a line would be crossed in

terms of separation of powers by telling the judicial system or
instructing the university to announce job transfers.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG addressed Representative Johnson's
concern by noting that the House State Affairs Standing

Conmittee sponsored a bill in 2007 that would provide a
procedure for the renoval of [the University of Al aska's Board
of Regents], and that bill still resides in the House Judiciary

Standing Committee. He cited AS 14.40.170, which lists the
duties and powers of the Board of Regents, as nandated by the
| egi slature, and he said that shows there is a precedent for
giving such directives. Representative Guenberg directed
attention to subsection (b), beginning on page 2, |line 29, which
read as foll ows:

(b) In this section, "state agency" neans a
departnent, institution, board, comm ssion, division,
authority, public corporation, commttee, or other
adm nistrative unit of the executive branch of state
governnent, including the University of Al aska, but
not including the Al aska Railroad Corporation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the |anguage in subsection (b) is
“internally inconsistent,"” because he stated his understanding
that the University of Alaska is not part of the executive
br anch.

MR. KREINHEDER said he hesitates to respond. Notw thstanding

that, he offered his wunderstanding that the wuniversity "is
within the executive branch, but has certain special provisions
that apply to it." In response to a followup question from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 15, 2008



Representati ve G uenber g, he sai d the Al aska Rai | r oad
Corporation is "a special case,"” because it is not subjected to
the Executive Budget Act, whereas the nmjority of state
corporations - including the Permanent Fund Corporation and
Al aska Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC) - are.

11:47: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "If this is inportant enough to
do, why isn't the judicial branch included? Because when judges
and inportant judicial enployees are transferred around, that
has a nmajor effect on comunities.” He al so suggested that in
addition to announcing transfers, new and deleted positions be
announced.

11:48: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL related that other areas of the state are
increasing the nunber of their state enployees, while Juneau -
the capital city - is the only location that has a decrease in
state enpl oyees. She said she thinks both the FRANK Initiative
and the proposed |egislation shows that the public wants to know
and wants to be involved, rather than being told what is going
on after the fact. She said the issue is a philosophical one

She concluded that this is not a "Juneau thing," although
inmportant to Juneau; it is a policy issue for state.

11:50: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he also would not want the bill to
result in having to report the noving of one office room to
anot her within the sane buil ding.

11:51:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL concurred. He stated that he does not
want the notice to becone obstructive to good state government.
He tal ked about ways to define "location”

11:53: 28 AM

MR. KREI NHEDER suggested that if the concern is finding out
about transfers that occur from one city or nmunicipality to
another, clarifying |anguage could be inserted [on page 2,
within lines 20-22].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 15, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL pointed out that sonme State of Al aska
jobs are located in Seattle, Washington and Washington, D.C. He

said he does not think the bill can be carried out wthout a
cost to the state, and thus, he recomended the sponsor
reconsider the [zero fiscal notes in the commttee packet]. He

said he thinks the conmttee could help the sponsor figure out a
definition for "location".

11:55: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON, regarding the public notices system
asked Ms. Neal how many "unique page views" are possible on a
monthly basis and how many of those are "from outside state
conputers” versus "inside."

11:55:51 AM

M5. NEAL responded that the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor
adm nisters the online public notice system and she could ask
that office for the information.

11:56: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opined that if the bill were truly about
informng the public, there would need to be sone type of
outreach other than "the mniscule nunber of people that
actually access the Alaska online notices systens." Those few
peopl e, he surm sed, consist of contractors |ooking for bids and
state enployees looking to find what positions are open. He said
he thinks the bill is about notifying the governnment, and for
t hat reason he cannot support it.

11:57: 57 AM

VICE CHAIR ROSES, after ascertaining that there was no one el se
to testify, closed public testinony.

11:58:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he is not yet prepared to offer an
anendnent that would clarify the nmeaning of "location". He said
it may be necessary to "put a term in there and then put a
definition that goes with it." He enphasized that a definition
i S needed.

11: 59: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 15, 2008



VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that HB 374 was heard and hel d.

The commttee took an at-ease from 12:00: 13 PMto 12:11:48 PM

HB 261- PUBLI CALLY FI NANCED ELECTI ONS

12:11:59 PM

VICE CHAIR ROSES announced that the last order of business was
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 261, "An Act establishing
a program of public funding for the financing of election
canpai gns of candidates for state elected offices, to be known
as the Cl ean Elections Act."

12:12: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute for sponsor substitute (CS) for SSHB 261, Version 25-
LS0929\M Bul lard, 2/21/08, as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for di scussion purposes.

12:12: 55 PM

SUZANNE HANCOCK, Staff, Representative CGabrielle LeDoux, Al aska
State Legislature, testified during the hearing on SSHB 261 on

behal f of Representative LeDoux, prine sponsor. She stated that
to her know edge, the only change nmade in Version M was to
replace all references to "clean elections" wth "publicly

fi nanced el ecti ons."

12:13:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG renoved his objection, t her ef ore,
Version Mwas before the colmmttee as a work draft.

12:13: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of
SSHB 261, said she thinks there is broad support anong the
public for the proposed legislation. She said she is a believer
in the initiative process and the conmttee process, and "any
kind of policy change like this really needs the support and the
detailed | ook that the conmttee process brings to it."

12:14: 30 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 15, 2008



ERIC EHST, Director, Cean Elections Institute, told the
committee that the institute was set up to nonitor the
i npl enentation of "clean elections" in Arizona. He said he
woul d address "sone of the commobn questions and concerns,

the urban |egends that have grown up around public financing."
He stated that Arizona has had public financing for four
el ection cycles, having passed its [Clean Elections Act] in 1998
and begun the system in 2000. The system has grown in usage
each year, up to the point where, in 2006, over 60 percent of
eligible candidates used the system wth a projected usage in
the 2008 election of up to 70 percent, he reported. Nine of the
el even current statewide officers, including the governor's
secretary of state and attorney general, have been el ected using
the system as have 38 of the state's 90 sitting legislators, he
not ed.

MR. EHST said the system has been successful, there have been no
problenms in its inplenmentation, and it is publically popular.
The | atest survey conducted by a nonpartisan organi zati on shows
that 81 percent of registered voters said they thought the
system was inportant for the state. In the ten years since the
Clean Elections Act was adopted, voter participation has
i ncreased; the 2006 election had the highest voter turnout for a
nonpresidential race since 1982. Furthernore, the Act has
i ncreased the nunber of people who participate financially in
t he process t hr ough gi vi ng t he $5-dol | ar qgual i fyi ng
contributions to candidates. The nunber of people who have
recei ved sone financi al contri butions has i ncreased
exponential ly.

12: 18: 02 PM

MR. EHST turned to the issue of msperceptions related to the
Clean Elections Act. The biggest question, he noted, is whether
the Act results in a free ride for candidates, allowing themto
get the public noney and spend it on anything they want w thout
bei ng accountable. M. Ehst debunked that nyth by relating that
Arizona's system has set up much nore accountability than there

ever was in the canpaign finance system prior to the Act. He
backed that up by relating stories of candidates that did not
qual i fy. He said the donated noney nust be spent for "actua

canpai gn purposes” and at fair market value. Any conplaints are
investigated, and any fines or penalties cone out of the
candi dat es’ pockets.

12:22: 03 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 15, 2008



MR. EHST tal ked about the equalizing character of a natching
fund system He said, "If you're running as a Cean Elections
candidate and your opponent, who's a traditionally funded
candidate, raises nore noney than you get ... from the Cean
El ections system you get matching funds to make up for that -
to level the playing field." If an independent expenditure
canpaign sends out a nmamiler either in favor of a candidate's
opponent or against the candidate, he noted, that candidate gets
mat ching funds "to nake up for that." He said if a candidate
receives a windfall right before elections and cannot spend it
on his/her canpaign, that noney has to be returned to the fund.
He said the system works efficiently to "identify these
expenditures ahead of time, as early as possible, and get the
mat chi ng noney out to the candi dates quickly."

MR. EHST brought up a case in which a candidate for governor in
Mai ne paid her husband $100, 000 out of C ean Elections funds to

be a consultant for her canpaign. Doing so was not illegal, but
Maine is working on making it so. It is not illegal in Arizona,
he added. The candidate's husband was an actual professiona
canpai gn consul tant. Anot her concern he related was in regard
to the 2006 el ection canpaign, "where the system was voted down
on the ballot ...." He said that was a special case, in which
the people who ran the initiative in California "were not the
actual, national, clean noney people working on doing this
across the country."” He enphasized the control systens that are

in place to make certain the systemis "effective and efficient
and fair to everybody."

12: 25: 30 PM

VICE CHAIR ROSES asked M. Ehst if he is famliar with the
Gol dwater Institute Policy Report of March 28, 2006.

MR. EHST answered yes. He said he has been rebutting that
report. He said the report is full of data that has been
distorted to "fit their conclusion,” and there is little in it
that is true.

VICE CHAIR ROSES noted that the report found that the Arizona
Clean Elections System had largely failed to live up to its
stated goals - one being that there would be overall | nprovenent
in political participation.

MR. EHST responded that the report's basis for saying that was

primarily based on voter turnout, but the report distorted the
voter turnout data to the point where it was totally

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 15, 2008



unr ecogni zabl e. M. Ehst stated, "If you look at voter turnout
by any objective nmeasure, it has been rising steadily with each
election since [the Cean Elections Act] was adopted.” He
reiterated that Arizona's 2006 voter turnout was the highest
seen since 1982, a statistic that he noted is from Arizona's
secretary of state. He said the Coldwater Institute Policy
Report includes presidential years, nonpresi dential years,
primary el ections, general elections, and even one presidential
preference primary that was only for Republicans; therefore,

there is no discernable trend in the data. Furthernmore, he
said, the report expresses voter turnout as "a percentage of
voti ng-age popul ation.” He said that neans everyone in the
state over the age of 18, including very rapidly rising
popul ations in Arizona of noncitizen immgrants and ex-felons,
nei ther of whom can vote. He said he is sure the Gol dwater

Institute is not advocating that those groups be allowed to
vote. He said voter turnout, as determ ned by the percentage of
regi stered voters or as a percentage of voting eligible people,
and by conparing like elections, has increased steadily. He
added, "It has also risen significantly if you neasure ... how
many voters are actually giving noney in the form of the $5-
dol lar contribution to candidates.”

12:28:52 PM

VICE CHAIR ROSES said another <claim regarding the dean
El ections process is that it would encourage nore candi dates to
run for office; however, the aforenentioned report clains that
from 2002 to 2004, the nunber of primary candidates for office
fell from 247 to 195, the nunber of statew de candidates fell
from 39 to seven, and the nunber of |egislative candidates fell
from 208 to 188.

MR. EHST responded, "In raw nunber terns that's correct."” He
said 2002 was a record year for candidates for all offices
because, sinultaneously, the state was redistricting and term
limts were put in play that went into effect as a result of the

2000 el ection. Al of those factors, he explained, created a
huge nunber of open seats. The nunber of candidates today is
significantly higher than it was before the C ean Elections Act
was adopt ed. He stated, "The Coldwater Institute ... - they
pick the years that they want to, to nmake it | ook the worst that
they can.” He noted that the nunber of candidates who use the

Cl ean El ections system has been rising steadily, as well.

VICE CHAIR ROSES referred to the [United States GCeneral
Accounting Ofice (GAO] Report to Congressional Commttees,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 15, 2008



dated May 2003. He read a statenent from the report, which
specifically references Maine and Arizona as the two states with
a Clean Elections program as foll ows:

The average nunber of state |egislative candidates per
district race in Mine and Arizona in 2000-2002
el ections were not notably different than the average
for the two previous elections for '96 and '98.

VI CE CHAI R ROSES asked, "So, wouldn't that statenment uphold the
statenment that the CGoldwater Institute nade in their report?"

MR. EHST said he does not have the figures used in the GAO
report, but he believes it is in error, particularly because it
references the 2000-2002 elections, which actually had record
nunbers of candidates in Arizona.

12:32: 47 PM

MR. EHST, in response to a request from Vice Chair Roses, noted
that the long-term trend regarding incunbency is not clear, yet
the Coldwater Institute reported that incunbents are being

reelected at the sane rate. He said the problem is [the
institute's] data only considers incunbent reelection rate in
the general election, and in Arizona - particularly for the
| egislative seats - 26 of the 30 legislative districts "have a
heavy majority for one party or the other.” Any incunbent who
can survive a primary challenge in Arizona is virtually
guaranteed to be reelected, he relayed; however, in Arizona's
2002 and 2004 primary elections, a nunmber of incunbents were
"knocked off," and the incunbent reelection rate, which is
usually in the high 90 percentile, was 73 percent in 2002 and
still below 90 percent in 2004. He stated, "W do know that
there are fewer wuncontested ... primary races since ean
El ections, and that a nunber of incunbents have ... lost in

primary chall enges by Cl ean El ections-funded opponents.™

12:35:27 PM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES asked for historical data regarding which party
held the majority prior to the Cean Elections Act conpared to
t oday.

MR. EHST replied that Arizona is a "fairly Republican state,”
and the mgjority has been held by the Republican Party since the
1960s, with the exception of one year in the early 1990s when
the Denocrat Party "took the state senate.” The Republican

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 15, 2008



majority still exists today in Arizona. He offered further
det ai | s.

12:37: 02 PM

MR. EHST, in response to a question from Representative Johnson,
explained that the funding of Clean Elections in Arizona is
fairly unique, in that the primary funding nechanism from which
nmore than 60 percent of the noney cones, is sourced from a 10
percent surcharge on all crimnal and civil fines. The system
generates a surplus of noney that is then transferred to
Arizona's general fund, which is currently being applied to the
state's record budget deficit. He told the commttee that
[Clean Elections] is not a taxpayer funded system

12: 38: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON responded that he would hate to see a
situation where the State of Alaska pronoted crine to fund
el ections. He offered his understanding that SSHB 261 proposes
that the Cean Elections would be funded publicly fromthe state
treasury.

VR. EHST, in response to a followup question from
Representative Johnson, related that Maine's Cean Elections are
financed through |Ilegislative appropriation, and the state is
considering reducing the financing available to candidates,
because of budget cuts. Connecticut just passed [a Cean
El ections Act] by legislative action and will begin the system
with its wupcomng election, funding it through |Ilegislative
appropriation. The pilot program for legislative seats in New

Jersey is funded by |egislative appropriation. Arizona is a
financially conservative state, thus, it set up a system that
woul d be self-funding. He stated, "Wiile we ... certainly don't

condone | aw breaking, there are plenty of speeders in the state
to keep us flush.”

MR. EHST, in response to Representative Johnson, confirnmed that
it is his contention that [a Cean Elections systen] has
increased the nunber of candidates in Arizona. He clarified
that although he works with activists and groups nationw de, his
organi zation, whose mssion is to nonitor the inplenentation of
the Clean Elections Act, is specific to Arizona. He said it is
difficult to report the exact nunber of candidates, because the
nunber varies widely by election. He reiterated that there were
a record nunber of candidates in 2000-2002 because of the term
l[imts and redistricting. He proffered that there were

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 15, 2008



approximately 20 percent nore legislative candidates in 2006
than in 1998, "which was a simlar election.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said, "Qur fiscal note is based upon an
el ection that happens, so I'mwndering if we can add 20 percent
to the fiscal note on this."

12: 42: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it is easy to say that since "B"
follows "A " therefore "A" caused "B," for exanple, but that is
not always true, unless the situation is conpletely controlled
and there is a causal connection shown, wth no extraneous
factors that could have caused the result.

MR. EHST said he certainly understands and agrees with that.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said in this instance it sounds |ike
there were at least two other factors that kicked in: term
l[imts and redistricting. He asked M. Ehst if he could prove
that "those two results were due to Clean Elections and not
other factors."”

MR. EHST responded that without a scientifically pure study, it
is not possible to absolutely prove one thing or another;
however, he said there was definitely an effect in the 2000-2002

el ections, particularly, of termIlimts and redistricting. He
said, of course, redistricting happens every 10 years. He
cont i nued:
W had, in those elections, ... fewer incunbents
running for reelection. ... Because we are past the

point where term l[imts took out a large nunber of
i ncunbents at one time, we have now returned to the
point where the nunber of incunbents running for
office is essentially the sanme as it was before C ean
El ecti ons. The redistricting changes have now, since
2002, been worked out of the system

| certainly wll agree that the 2000 and 2002
el ections were anomal ous for those reasons, which is
why, when | go back and conpare 2004 and 2006, back to
1996 and 1998, we can say - and | can't, again, prove
absolutely - that Clean Elections is ... at |east the
sole cause for this, but we can say that: vot er
turnout is up; the nunber of candidates is up; the
nunber of contested races is up; the races are closer

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 15, 2008



than they used to be. ... The other influencing
factors have had a chance to work their way out of the
system si nce then.

MR. EHST, in response to Representative G uenberg, reviewed that
the termlimts went into effect with the 2000 el ection. The
term limts are four consecutive two-year terns for the
| egi sl ature.

12:46: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he presunes that in the '90s there
were no termlimts, while now there are. He asked, "M ght that
not have also had the effect of what you're saying?"

MR. EHST clarified that when termlimts first went into affect,
there were a | arge nunber of legislators who were "termlimted"
and had to |eave office. Since then, the nunber of |egislative
i ncunbents running for reelections has rebounded to be
essentially the sanme when conparing the election years 2006 with
1998, for exanple. He concluded, "So, while we didn't have term
[imts in the "90s, it isn't really now affecting the nunber of
| egislators running for reelections any nore than just the
nat ural nunber of people leaving office did in the 1990s.™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that the first group of
| egislators elected under the new term limts have yet to
conplete their potential full term

MR. EHST clarified that starting in 2000, the termlimts were
effective for anyone who had served eight years, and a nunber of
| egislators were "terned out” in the years 2000 and 2002 and had
to |leave office, which created a |arge nunber of open seats in
those years. Since then, he said, the nunber of |egislators who
are terned out does not appear to be changing the nunber of
i ncunbents running for reelection any nore than natural
attrition did before termlimts.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained his point is that it is too
soon to tell. It will be necessary to see the data from the
next two el ections.

MR. EHST concurred. He continued:
The data that | have, as | said, shows a |arge

turnover in those two years that is, at |east for the
present, rebounded to the point where the nunber of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 15, 2008



i ncunbents running for reelection is essentially the
sane as it was in the 1990s, prior to term limts.
And | don't think that the data from 2008, from what
|"ve seen so far, looks Ilike it's going to be
significantly different than that.

12: 50: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st at ed, "1 ncunbency can br eed
gentrification and wunwillingness to <change and keep a
legislature in tune with the tines." He nentioned termlimts,
redistricting, Clean Elections, and Al aska's 90-day session and
said they all "express and proceed from a general public
distrust of the Ilegislature.™ He said the Institute of
Governmental Affairs (IG), in California, is a think tank

connected with the Political Science Departnent at California
State University Berkley that has studied the effect of term
limts in California and the effect on the balance of power.
Representative G uenberg stated his belief that there is a val ue
in incunbency, "because a strong legislature is inportant for a
good balance of power and to ensure that the people are
represented properly.” He asked M. Ehst to comment regarding
whet her or not part of the Clean Elections proposal is to get a
greater turnover in the legislature, and whether there my be
problenms in doing so from a systemc, institutional, or
constitutional point of view

MR. EHST said he is not testifying as an advocate of term
limts, and the purpose of Cean Elections is not to force
i ncunbents out of office. He naned the two primary purposes of
Cl ean El ections: to reduce the influence of special interest
nmoney in the process of selecting elected officials; and to
increase conpetition by giving nore candidates the financial
means to run for office. The incunbent reelection rate is not
really a good neasure of whether or not "Clean Elections is
doing its job." Good neasures include the nunber of candi dates
and whet her or not voters are respondi ng.

12:55:18 PM

VICE CHAIR ROSES referred to the findings in the bill and cited
the first sentence, [on page 1, lines 6-8], which read as
foll ows:

The legislature finds that providing a voluntary
public financing system for all primary and general

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 15, 2008



state elections would enhance denocracy in the state
in the follow ng principle ways:

VICE CHAIR ROSES highlighted one of those ways, [on page 1,
subsection (1), lines 9-11], which read as foll ows:

(1) it would affirmthe principle of "one person
one vote," reduce the disproportionate and del eterious
influence of large contributors, and restore the
rights of citizens of all backgrounds to equal and
meani ngful participation in the denocratic process;

VICE CHAIR ROSES highlighted another of the ways public
financing would enhance denobcracy, as witten in the bill [on
page 2, subsection (4), lines 1-3], which read as foll ows:

(4) it would dimnish the public perception of
corruption, strengthen public confidence in denocratic
institutions and processes, and elimnate the danger
of corruption caused by the private financing of
el ecti on canpai gns;

VICE CHAIR ROSES asked M. Ehst if he agrees wth those
findi ngs.

MR. EHST responded that that is the goal, "to elimnate that
influence - ... whether it's subconscious or not - on the
system "

VICE CHAIR ROSES asked M. Ehst if his group has conducted any
surveys to ascertain whether or not the public feels that [C ean
El ections] has "indeed acconplished that objective.”

MR. EHST replied that his group has not, but the state
commi ssion that runs the program has. He said he did not bring
that report with him He said the conm ssion conducts an annual
survey  of registered voters through a well-established,
nonparti san survey organi zation.

VICE CHAIR ROSES nentioned a United States General Accounting
Ofice Report to the Congressional Conmittees on Canpaign
Finance Reform - a report regarding publicly funded elections.
In it, 2002 survey results show that when asked if dean
El ections increased their confidence in the public process, 8
percent of those surveyed in Mine and 15 percent of those
surveyed in Arizona answered yes.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 15, 2008



VICE CHAIR ROSES asked M. Ehst if he finds those statistics
sur pri si ng.

MR. EHST responded that he does not find the public perception
surprising considering that when that survey was done in 2002
t here had been one el ection conducted in both Maine and Arizona,
and in Arizona, only about 25 percent of the candi dates used the
system There was very little experience with the system at

t hat point. He said quantitative effect on public policy is
difficult to prove, because it is hard to track how taking
special interest noney out of the canpaign process actually

affects | egislation.

VICE CHAIR ROSES next read a quote from the 2007 Mine
Comm ssion on Governnental Ethics and Election Practices - a
report on Maine's Clean Elections Act - as foll ows:

Candi dates are quite critical of the growmh in
i ndependent expenditures made by political action

commttees and political parties. It is inportant to
remenber that the public funding cannot be a panacea
for all ills of the electoral system

VICE CHAIR ROSES noted that the conmission reports it saw no
change in the public's confidence related to big noney influence
as a result of Maine's Clean Election Act. He asked M. Ehst if
he finds that surprising.

MR. EHST answered no. He said independent expenditures are a
free speech issue and occur in all canpaigns, whether or not the
candi dates are publicly financed. Furthernore, the anmount of
i ndependent expenditures is rising exponentially across the
country in races everywhere. He remarked that C ean Elections
provi des candidates who run "using the system wth additiona

funds to level the playing field, if they are the targets of
i ndependent expenditures.

VICE CHAIR RCSES said he appreciates that and is not trying to
be argunentative. He expl ained:

When soneone states that the main purpose of the bil

is to acconplish those two objectives, and we have two
reports that actually clearly state from surveys that
were done that it indeed did not acconplish those
objectives - and one being from 2007, it gives ne a
little bit of pause as to whether or not we're going
to have that same opportunity in this state to claim

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 15, 2008



that it's going to nake that kind of a change when
hi story shows in the other states that it didn't.

1: 02: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked what the contribution levels and
l[imts in Arizona were prior to the adoption of its dean
El ections Act.

MR. EHST responded that Arizona has sonme of the | owest
i ndi vidual contribution limts in the country, put in place by
citizen initiative in the 1980s, wth built-in inflationary
factors. He noted that in 2008, the anobunt of noney that a
| egi sl ative candidate can take from any individual is $390. He
related that there is no limt on the aggregate anmpunt that a
candidate can collect or spend on his/her canpaign, but the
limts apply to «contributions from individuals and PACs.
Arizona does not allow any corporate or business contributions
to candi dat es. In response to Representative Johnson, he said
the contribution limt for a "normal”™ PAC is the sane as for an
i ndi vidual, but offered his understanding that "super" PACs can
gi ve about $1, 700. He noted also that Arizona has a limt on
the anount of contributions that a candidate can collect in
aggregat e from PAGCs.

1: 05: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked M. Ehst to talk about third-party
expendi t ur es.

MR. EHST responded:

I f you had asked ne in 2002 or 2004, | would have said
i ndependent expenditures were going down because of
Clean Elections, because ... commttees knew that if
t hey made these expenditures targeting C ean Elections
candidates, ... the Cean Elections candidates would
get matching funds. In 2006, it appears that they
rebounded it, at least to sone extent, but | can't
guantify it. ... W don't have a reporting system
that ... allows us to know how nuch in aggregate there
are in independent expenditures ... or in what races
t hey' re nade. The only ... place where we could see
it would be to ook at the ... actual matching funds
given to Cl ean El ections candi dates.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 15, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the increase in voter turnout,
previously noted by M. Ehst , had been "adjusted for
popul ation. "

MR. EHST answered yes. He clarified, "Wien | say, 'increase in
voter turnout,' |'m not speaking in ... broad nunbers of voters
turning out, although that has increased rapidly." He stated

that under both the percentage of registered voters and the
nunber of people eligible to vote, the voter turnout has
increased significantly in "like elections.™ In response to a
foll ow-up question from Representative Johnson, he reported that
the official voter turnout nunber for Arizona's 2006 general
el ection was 60.47 percent - the highest since 1982. That
nunber, in 1998, the last election before the Cean Elections
Act was adopted, was 46 percent.

1: 08: 58 PM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES asked if there were any "hot topic" issues that
were on the ballot then. He relayed, for exanple, that any
ball ot issue having to do with the permanent fund dividend woul d
bring increased nunbers of voters.

MR. EHST responded that Arizona has a l|large nunber of ballot
measures on the ballot in every election. He reiterated his
comments regarding the steady rise of voter activity since the
adoption of the Clean El ections Act.

1:10: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recol | ected that Arizona is part of the
Sun Belt and Baby Booners turning 61, and others are noving to
Arizona in increasing nunbers. He asked if that may be one
reason that the nunbers are increasing. He noted that seniors
tend to vote nore.

MR. EHST said he cannot answer that question in quantitative
termns. Notwi t hstanding that, he said Arizona has been part of
the Sun Belt for many years now. He said he does not believe
that the state's population is significantly older now than it
was in 1998. He said Arizona also has a lot of young people
moving to the state, as well.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if any studies have been

conducted to determ ne whether people who nove to the sun belt
tend to vote nore than the people who are already there, perhaps

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 15, 2008



because they may be nore upwardly nobile or nore inclined to be
civically invol ved.

MR. EHST said he doesn't know that such a study has been done.
He noted that Latinos are rapidly becomng an increasingly
| arger part of Arizona's population, and national statistics
show that that group tends to vote in |ower nunbers than the
rest of the popul ation. In response to a followup question
from Representative Guenberg, he explained that Arizona has a
few majority/mnority districts where Latinos and Native
Americans are concentrated, and the nunber of Latino candi dates
and voters has not increased significantly after the adoption of
the Cl ean El ections Act.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d because of the "Mtor Voter Act,”
over the past 10-15 years there have been a |lot of nanes that
have not been accurate on voter rolls. He asked M. Ehst if
Arizona has taken steps to "cleanse that roll,"” which would
increase the percentage of voters by lowering the denom nator
when the out-of-date nanmes are renoved fromthe |ist.

MR. EHST confirned that the state has done so, to sone extent,
several tines over the course of tine. However, he said that
has not changed the nunber of voters on the rolls enough to
change the trend in voting. He said Ceorge Mason University
conducts a good acadenmi c study nationw de of voter turnout, and
that data - using the definition of voting eligible population,
which is not related to how noney people are actually on the
voter rolls but by using census data to determ ne how nany
people in the state actually could vote - shows that voter
turnout in Arizona has been rising steadily, as well.

1:18:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON recalled that it is M. Ehst's opinion
that Cl ean Elections increases the nunber of candidates that run
for office, but others argue that it does not. He stated that
if there is an increase, then the fiscal note is wong. He
added, "And if it doesn't increase the nunber of candidates,
then that is an argunent that we should be making, in ternms of
participation on this bill."

1:19: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE =~ GRUENBERG  descri bed a | oophol e regar di ng

f undr ai si ng. He suggested that ratcheting down spending may
favor incunbents nore, because their challengers could not raise

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 15, 2008



the noney to get the publicity to get the incunmbents out of

of fice. If the challenger feels the only way to get a nessage
out is by not going after public funding, the situation becones
wor se, "because then the public funds the incunbent's race

entirely," he said.

MR. EHST said he is not sure he understands the question.
Not wi t hst andi ng that, he said adopting a public financing system
does not prevent any candidate from raising funding the
traditional way, and allowi ng candidates to qualify for public
financing does not decrease the anmount of noney that any
candidate is getting.

1: 20: 53 PM

VICE CHAIR ROSES explained that Representative Guenberg had
been referring to SSHB 261, which proposes a limtation on
expenditure, which may not be the case in Arizona.

MR. EHST offered his understanding that in every state that
offers public financing, the candidate who receives it signs a
contract that prom ses he/she will not spend any nore noney than
he/ she gets fromthe public fund. He continued:

Now, that goes back to the setting of the anount that
a candidate receives to run for office. It has to be
a fair amount to run a canpaign. And al so, you have
the matching funds or equalizing funds, that if they
are out-spent by an opponent or if there is an
i ndependent expenditure working against them they get
extra noney to nmake up for that. There is a limt on
that, otherw se you could potentially break the bank.

... Wiat we have seen in Arizona is that [in] 90-95
percent of the races, ... the expenditures for all
candidates fall wthin the anmpbunt of funding that a
Clean Elections candidate gets from the system -
either the initial funding that they get or the
addi tional matching funds that they get.

MR. EHST said there have been a few instances where there has
been a candidate who has gone out and raised a huge anount of
noney, far surpassing the Cl ean Elections spending or natching
funds limt, thereby outspending his/her opponent. He offered
details of just such an occurrence in Arizona's 2006 election.
He said he has spoken with several candidates who have told him
losing in that manner was okay, because wthout the C ean

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 15, 2008



El ections public funding, they never would have been in the race
in the first place. He said the system cannot nake up for that
ki nd of funding, and no systemever wll.

1: 24: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON described a hypothetical scenario in
whi ch one party ran an advertisenent that pronoted its own party
and put down another. He asked if that would qualify every
candidate in the other party for matching funds.

MR. EHST answered not necessarily. He said, "That's one of the
things that we have westled with in refining the system"” He
said there is an exception built into Arizona law that allows
political parties to nake expenditures for "slate cards" which
list a particular party' s candidates. He stated:

Both parties have ... tried to make end runs around
the Clean Elections law by producing slick, 12-page
mailers that are all about a particular candidate and
why this particular candidate is wonderful. And on
the back page, in 10-point type, it lists two other
candi dat es' nanes.

W have now put into the Cean Elections
adm nistrative rules a very tight definition of what
fits into that exception, and candidates do get
mat ching funds for political party expenditures that

do blatantly either support one of their opponents
or attack them

VICE CHAIR ROSES told M. Ehst that he has represented the issue
wel | .

1: 28: 29 PM

TIM JUNE, Chair, Alaskans for C ean Elections, said Al askans for
Clean Elections is the group forwarding the Cean Elections
Initiative. He said Alaskans for Cean Elections adopted an
nunber of the recomendations in Mine's 2007 report. The
initiative proposes that any group spending nore than $500 woul d
have to report to the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APQOC)
and state whether the expenditure was either for or against a
particul ar candidate. There would be an appeal process, in case
a candidate disagrees that the independent expenditure was
"either for or against them"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 15, 2008



MR. JUNE, in response to Representative Johnson's comments about
the need to increase the fiscal note, said he thinks the fiscal
note was based on Maine's Cean Elections Act specifically. He
said the system requires three or four election cycles "to
really conme into its owmn." In Miine, the first election cycle
showed about 33 percent participation, by the second cycle it
increased to 67 percent, and by the third cycle, the nunber grew
to about 81 percent candidate participation in C ean Elections.

MR. JUNE, in response to a comment by Representative G uenberg
regarding the level of spending in political races, said he does
not have any hard facts and figures, but thinks it could be
agreed upon that in terns of a typical election cycle in Al aska,
out of the 50 legislative races in each cycle, there are
probably only eight to ten of those that are truly conpetitive
when conparing dollar-for-dollar expenditure. He said dean
El ections brings out the opportunity for candidates to use C ean
El ections funding. He predicted there would be nore conpetitive
races. He echoed M. Ehst's statenent that the point of Cean
Elections is not to replace incunbents, but to give whoever
wins, if they are able to use the Clean Elections system "a
somewhat arm s-length distance, in terns of not having special
interest influence or the influence of private donors."

1: 32: 22 PM

MR. JUNE referred to page 23 of chapter 3 of the WMine 2007
report, which he related shows that because of Mine's dean

Elections Act, the total anmount of private contributions
received by |egislative candidates has fallen sharply, by nearly
77 percent. Furthernore, the report shows that in survey

responses to the commission, a significant nunber of candi dates
and legislators have stated their belief that canpaign
contributions have sone expectation of access and infl uence.

1: 33: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there are and have been candi dates
that have businesses that advertise locally or statewi de on
t el evi si on. He remarked, "It's like a 24/7 presence of that
candidate for publicity's sake." He said sonetines the
candi dates are incunbents and sonetines they are challengers,
but "this becomes tax deductible because it's a business

expense." He said, "So, business finances this publicity and so
does the federal governnent, in the sense that it's a tax
deduction.” He observed that those activities are not at all

covered under SSHB 261 or under current |law, and there are some

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 15, 2008



potential constitutional issues there. He asked M. June how
the legislature should deal with that, because it seens to him
that those individuals have a trenendous advantage over
everybody el se.

MR. JUNE said he agrees. Al t hough constitutionally the state
cannot control what a private individual does wth private
finances for advertising, sone states have created a |law so that
no seated |egislator can have his/her picture in any literature
put out to constituents if that literature is paid for wth
state noney. He said there are nechanisns to control that
situation and that sonme states are using to mninmze the
i ncunbent' s advant age. He concluded, "But in terns of private
funds, | don't have an answer for you Representative G uenberg.”

1:36: 01 PM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that SSHB 261 was heard and hel d.
1:36: 16 PM

VICE CHAIR ROSES announced the upcomng House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee calendar and gave notice of Senator Lisa

Mur kowski ' s upcom ng appear ance.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG tal ked about information he had
recei ved from Senat or Mir kowski .

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
1:37:47 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- March 15, 2008



